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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Lava International Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Lava Intetnational
Limited (“the Holding Company”), its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
together referred to as "the Group"), its associate and a joint venture comprising of the consolidated
balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the consolidated statement changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the
other financial information of the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2021, its
consolidated profit including other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity, and its
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act). Our responsibilities under those Standards are
turther described in the 'Auditor’s Responsibiliies for the Audit of the consolidated financial
statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules theteunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requitements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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Other Information

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information.
The other information comprises the information included in Directors’ Report including
Annexures to the Directors’ report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we ate required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard

Responsibilities of Management and Those Chatged with Govetnance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance,
consolidated cash flows and consolidated change in equity of the Group including its associate and
joint venture in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) presctibed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (India Accounting Standards) Rule 2015 amended. The respective Board of Directots of
the companies included in the Group including its associate and joint venture are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Group including its associate and joint venture and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of approptiate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that wete operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding
Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group including its associate and joint venture are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the group or to cease operations, ot has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group including its associate
and joint venture are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group
including its associate and joint venture.




AA

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accotdance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could teasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exetcise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or etror, design and perform audit procedures tesponsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Group, associate and joint venture
which are the companies incorporated in India has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matetial uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncettainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify out opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concetn.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
undetlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities
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included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For
the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by
other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supetvision and
performance of the audits catrried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Mattets

a) We did not audit the financial statements of 7 subsidiaties and 1 trust whose financial statements
reflect total assets of Rs. 8,511.26 million and net assets of Rs 6,453.12 million as at March 31,
2021, total revenue of Rs. 38,837.17 million and net cash outflows amounting to Rs. 38.74
million for the year then ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements before giving effect of climination of intra-group transactions. The consolidated
financial statements also include the Group's share of loss (including other comprehensive
Income) of Rs. 1.74 million for the year ended March 31, 2021, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements, in respect of a associate and joint venture, whose financial
statements have not been audited by us.

These financial statements have been audited by the other auditors whose reports have been
turnished to us by the management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in
so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosutes included in respect of these subsidiaties, trust,
associate and joint venture, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act,
in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaties, trust, associate and joint venture is based solely
on the reports of the other auditors.

[Further, of these subsidiaties and trust, three subsidiaries are located outside India whose
financial statements and other financial information have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally acceptable in their respective countries and which have been
audited by other auditors under generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their
respective countries. The Holding Company's management has converted the financial
statements of such subsidiaries located outside India from accounting principles genetally
accepted in their respective countries to accounting ptinciples genetally accepted in India. Our
opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries located outside India
is based on the report of other auditors and the conversion adjustments prepared by the
management of the Holding Company which has been relied upon by us.

Also, we did not audit the financial statements and other financial information in respect of 8
subsidiaty companies, whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 199.99 million and
net assets of Rs. (541.93) million as at 31 March 2021, total revenues of Rs. 135.96 million and
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net cash outflow amounting to Rs (4.36) million for the yeat ended on that date, as considered in
the consolidated financial statements before giving effect of elimination of intra-group
transactions. These financial statements and other information are unaudited and has been
furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in
so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiaties, and our
report in term of sub-section (3) of section 143 of the Act, in so far it related to the aforesaid
subsidiaries, is based solely on such unaudited financial statements and other financial
information. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by
the Management, these financial statements and other financial information are not material to
the Group.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements is not modified in respect of the
above matters with respect to our reliance on the wotk done and the reports of the other
auditors and these financial statements and other financial information certified by the
management.

b) The consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020, were audited by
another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on December 15,

2020.
Repott on Other Legal and Regulatoty Requitements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report
of the other auditors on separate financial statements and other financial information of the
subsidiaries, trust, associate and joint venture as noted in the 'other mattet' paragraph, we report,
to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessaty for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as requited by law have been kept so far as it
appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors;

(c) The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss, (including
other comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report ate in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") presctibed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015;

(6) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on March 31, 2021 taken on tecord by the Boatd of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the auditors of its subsidiary companies, associate and joint
venture which are the companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group's
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companies, its associate and joint venture which are companies incotrporated in India is
disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164
(2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and
operating effectiveness of such controls of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies,
associate and joint venture which are the companies incorporated in India, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A”, and

(g In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Group, associate and joint venture which are the companies
incorporated in India to its directors during the cutrent year is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197 of the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in out opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending liigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group including its associate and joint venture —
Refer Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements;

. The Group, its associate and joint venture has made provision, as requited under the
applicable law or accounting standards, for matetial foreseeable losses, if any and to the
extent ascertainable, on long-term contracts including detivative contracts;

tii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Group, its associate and joint venture.

For ASA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registrgtion No: 009571N/N500006

¢ WW
Prateet Mittal

Partner

Membership No. 402631

UDIN: 21402631AAAARV7139

Place: Gurugram
Date: September 21, 2021
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for
the year ended March 31, 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of Lava International Limited ("the Holding Company") and its subsidiaties (the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group"), its joint venture and associate,
which are the companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Intetnal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, its associate
and joint venture which are companies covered under the Act, ate responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on, the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the ordetly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely ptepatation of reliable
financial information, as tequited under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the
Standards on Auditing. issued by ICAI and deemed to be presctibed under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whethet adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
of etrot.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the other matter paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Intetnal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control ovet financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedutes that(l) pertain to the maintenance of recotrds that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are tecorded as necessary to permit preparation of
consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthotized acquisition, use, ot disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management overtide of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future petiods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may detetiorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, its joint ventures and its associates
which are companies incorporated in India have, in all matetial respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal financial control
over financial reporting criteria. established by the Holding Company consideting the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Control
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
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Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting, in so far as it relates to 4 subsidiaries, 1
associate and 1 joint venture which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the

cotrresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on

representations provided by the management.

For ASA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 009571N/N500006

v

Prateet Mittal
Partner . Chartered
Membership No. 402631 Accountants

UDIN: 21402631 AAAARV7139

Place: Gurugram
Date: September 21, 2021




Lava International Limited
Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2021

(Al amownts in Indian Rupees Million unles; otherwise staned)

Tarticulars B Nute No, As at 31 March 2021 As at31 March 2020
Assets
Not-current assets
Piopetty, plant and equipment 3 1,191 46 79490
Capital werk-in-progress 3 3275 2069
Intangible assets 4 29.60 57.54
Right of use assel 5 161.64 208.18
[nvestments accounted for using the equity method 36 62.06 63.79
Financial assets
Investments 6 (a) 58.45 6037
Loans 6 (f) 3032 26.15
Olher financial asset 6(h) 2082 20,50
Defeirted tax assets (net) 23 229.11 -
Other non-current asse's 8 (a) 51.15 5800
Advance tax assets (nei) 9 1,95 97
1,869.31 1,311,09
Current assets
Inveunlories 7 4,438.03 2,364.76
Financial assets
Investments 6 (b) 1000 20.69
Trade receivables 6(c) 11,624.18 13,148 12
Cash and cash equivalents 6 (d) 23875 186.38
Other bank balances 6 (e) 1,612.66 1,301.75
Loans 6 (g) 9.59 11.99
Others 6 (i) 46368 1,304 74
Other current assets 8 (b) 4. 10869 4,193,358
22,506.18 22,531.78
TOTAL ASSETS 24,375.49 23,842.87
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 10 1,248.67 1,248 67
Instruments entirely in equity 10 51.00 50.00
Other equity
Securilies premium reserve 2,393.58 1,874 58
Treasury shares (63.34) (03.34)
Foreign currency tianslation reserve 43220 596.83
Shate based payment reserve 228,72 14318
Retained eatnings 11,608.01 10,238.36
Other reserve (7.69) (7.69
Equity attiibutable to equity holders of the Holding Company 15,891.15 14,080.59
Non-controlling interest 041 051
Total Equity 15,891.56 14,081.10
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borowings 11(a) - 55358
Other financial liabilities 1 (d) 162 60 32036
Provisions 12 (a) 5155 4598
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 23 5 84.49
214.15 1,004.41
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Bonowings 11(b) 965,32 1.094.42
Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micio enterprises and small enterprises 11(c), 33 2037 11.07
- tolal outstanding dues of creditors other than micio enterprises and smali enterprises 11 (c) 5,061.44 4,954.45
Other financial liabilities 11 (e) 1,103.65 537.18
Other current liabilities 13 509.51 1,558.95
Provisions 12 (b) 248.35 23410
Cuirent Tax Liabilities (net) 14 361.14 367.19
Total liabilities §,269.78 8,757,306
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES - 24,375.49 23,842.87
Suminary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying noles form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

As per our 1eport of even date as atlached

For ASA & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants . Laviy International Limited
Firm’s Registgation No.: 00957 IN/NS00006 CIN: {\1170 | DL2009PLC 188920
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Lava International Limited
Caonsolidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amonms in Indian Rupees Million unless otherwise stated)

Parficulars Note No. For the year Ended For the year Ended 31
31 March 2021 March 2020
Income
Revenue from operations 15 55,128 74 52,643 29
O.her income 16, 40 108 04 18119
Telal income (1) §5,236.78 52.824.48
Expenses
Cost of raw material and components consumed 17 11,566.75 11,306 49
Purchase of traded goods 36,387 13 32,04932
(Increase)/decrease in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress 18 (1,293 96) 1.613 60
and traded goods
Employee benefil expenses 19 1,902 22 1,990 68
Other expenses 20, 40 4,162.49 3871 83
Total expense (11) 52,724.63 50,831.92
Earnings before share of loss of an associale & joint venture, interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
and tax (EBITDA) (I)-(11) 2,512.15 1,992.56
Depreciation and amortisalion expense 21 35037 33051
Finance costs 22,40 28576 38994
Profit before share of loss of an associate & joint venture and 1ax 1,836.02 1,272.11
Share of loss of joinl venture, associates (net of tax) (1) 36 1.73 5.64
Profit before tax 1,834.29 1,266.47
- Current tax 23 33267 201 60
- Tax charge/(credit) relating to earlier years (30.80) 2299
- Deferred fax expense/(income) 23 (193.66) (35.73)
Incomc tax expense 108.21 188.86
Proft for the year 1,726.08 1,077.61
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not 1o be reclassified (o profit or loss in subsequent periods
- Re-measurement (gains)/losses of defined benefit plaa 28 165 059
- Income tax relating to this item 0.41) 2
Other comprehensive income thal will be reclassified Lo profit or loss in
subsequent periods :
-Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations 164 63 (444 81)
Otlier comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) 165.87 (444.43)
Total Comprehensive income for (he year (net of tax) 1,560,21 1,522.04
Profit for the year is attributable to
- Equity holders of Holding Company 172618 1,077 62
- Non-controlling interest (0 10) 001)
Other comprehensive income of the year is at(ributable (o
- Equity holders of Holding Company (165.87) 444 43
- Non-controlling interest - .
Tofal comprehensive income of the year is attributable to
- Equity holders of Holding Company 1,560 31 1,522.05
- Non-controlling inlerest (0 10) (001)
Earnings per equity share (in rupees) 24
Basic 13.82 8.63
Diluted 12.61 7.87
Adjusted Basic* 3.46 2.16
Adjusted Diluted* 3.15 1.97
* Earnings per shares after adjustment of stock split and bonus subsequent to the reporting date
Summary of significant accounting policies 21

Tid

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these cc

As per our report of even date as attached
For ASA & Associates LLP

Chartered Accounlants

Fimy’s Registiz
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Lava International Limited

Consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Million unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year Ended 31 For the year Ended 31
March 2021 March 2020

Cash flow [rom operating activilies

Profi( before tax 1,834.29 1,266.47
Adjusiment to reconcile profit before lax (o net cash flows :
Depreciation/amortization 39037 33051
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (1.00) 327
Fair value (gain) /loss on Investment al fair value through profit or loss (2.00) 092
Unrealized foreign exchange (gain)/ loss 3000 (5931)
Net gain on sale of mutual fund investments (309) 0.17
Share of loss/(Profit) of associate/ joint venture 174 564
Balances wrilten off - 4193
Fair value (gain)/loss on derivalive financial instrument at FYTPL 1093 (13.35)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities (2291) (19.08)
Liability written back 8554 .
Provision for Inventories obsolescence (4167) 1482
Provision for trade receivables and advances 263 39 3131
Provision for other receivables = B
Unwinding of interest on borrowings 135 714
Interest expense 19330 21896
Interest income (75.65) {122.66)
Operating profit before working capital changes 2,6064.59 1,706,74
Movements in working capital:
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables and other liabilities (248.86) (2,79091)
Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions 2223 (21.65)
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables 494 41 (3,010.14)
(Increase)/ Decrease in invenlories (2,046.77) 1,912.56
(Increase)/ Decrease in other assels 922.15 863.55
Cash generated {rom operations 1,807 75 (1,339.85)
Income laxes paid (net of refunds) (289.95) 12.60
Net cash flow from/ (used in) operating activities (A) 1,517.80 (1,327.25)
Cash flows from investing activilies
Purchase of property, plant and equipmenl,including intangible assets, capital work in progress, intangible assets under (159.91) (18434)
development and cpital advances
Dilution of intangible assets including inlangible assets under develop (524 54) (128)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment {including intangibles) 431 193
Investment in subsidiaries 000 019
Movement in mutual fund investments 1391 7364
Investments in bank deposits (2,252 60) (2,186.19)
Redemption/maturity of bank deposits . 186728 2,762.85
Interest received 100 04 99.32
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B) (951.51) 566,12
Cash flow from financing activilies
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 3120 .
Payment of long-term borrowings (119 62) (120.69)
Movement in short-term borrowings (12910) 296.56
Interest paid on lease liability (24 99) 27.11)
Interest paid on borrowings (248 44) (130.66)
Net cash rom / (used in) financing activities (C) (490.95) 18.10
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B +C) 75.34 (743.03)
Effect of exchange differences on cash & cash equivalents held in foreign currency (22 97) 12717
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 18638 80224
Cash and cash equivalents al the end of the year 238,75 186.38
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 295 8.86
With banks on current account
- on deposit account 7727 8127
- others balances 158 53 96.25
Tolal cash and cash equivalents |Refer note 6 (d)] 238.75 186.38
Summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 2.1)
The accompanying notes forms an integral part of these consolidated financial statemenis
The schedules referred to above and notes on accounts form an Integral part of the consolidated cash flow st
As per our report of even date as atlached
For ASA & Associates LLP For and fin behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Lava Infernntional Limited
Firm's Regisiiagion No. 009571N/N500006 CIN: U3p 01 DL2009PLL 188920 [ ?p .
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Lava International Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the
year ended 31 March 2021

1.  Corporate information

Lava International Limited (‘Company’ or ‘Holding Company’) is engaged in trading and manufacturing of mobile
phones, storage devices and other wireless telecommunication devices. The Company is a public company domiciled
in India and is incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the
Company is located in Karampura, Delhi and the principal place of business is Noida, Uttar Pradesh. The Company
has an in-house research and development center and manufacturing facilities in Noida.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 21, September
2021.

2.  Basis of preparation
a. Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of Lava International Limited (the ‘Company’ or “Holding Company™), the trust
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as ‘Group’) and the Group’s interest in joint ventures and associate have
been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended thereafter.

These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, and all amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest
millions upto two places of decimal, unless otherwise indicated.

b. Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in India. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for the following items:

- Investments in equity instruments of other entities (at fair value through other comprehensive income)
- Investment in mutual funds (at fair value through profit or loss)
- Derivative financial instruments (at fair value through profit or loss)

¢. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the
date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in current and
future periods. Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements is included in the following notes:

Significant estimates

Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortizable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in
these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of assets. Carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are disclosed in Note 3 and Note 4 respectively.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases.
Variation in these assumptions may impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses. Carrying
amount of defined benefit obligations are disclosed in Note 29.

Provisions for warranties — A provision is estimated for expected warranty in respect of products sold during the
year on the basis of a technical evaluation and past experience regarding failure trends of products and costs of
tectification or replacement. Carrying amount of provision is disclosed in Note 12.

i \ aa ti




Lava International Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the
year ended 31 March 2021

Significant judgments

Contingent liabilities — At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects,
the Group assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the actual
future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Impairment of financial assets — At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over expected
life, the management assesses the expected credit loss on outstanding financial assets.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of
assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable
amount of the assets.

Recent Accounting Developments

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such notification
which would have been applicable from 1st April, 2021. MCA issued notifications dated 24th March, 2021 to amend Schedule 111
to the Companies Act, 2013 to enhance the disclosures required to be made by the Company in its financial statements. These
amendments are applicable to the Company for the financial year starting 1st April, 2021.

2.1 Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group and its interest in joint venture
and associate as at 31 March 2021. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
The nature of the Group’s operations and principal activities are set out in Note 38.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

e  Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee)

e  Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

e The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and
when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

o The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
e Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
e The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

o  The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other
voting rights holders

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the
date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other{j .
events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in)he / O
gansolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustiients
‘are 'made to that group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements 10 t»;qur
conformity with the group’s accounting policies. SN

. s E . o
The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting daté as—



Lava International Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the

yea

r ended 31 March 2021

2 (acclflonts)

that of the the holding company, i.e., year ended on 31 March. When the end of the reporting period of the parent is
different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional financial
information as of the same date as the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the
financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so.

Consolidation procedure:

a. Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of
its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the
assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date

b. Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion
of equity of each subsidiary.

c. Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between entities of the group. (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are
recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may
indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS12 Income
Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from
intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

e  Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary

e Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

o Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

e Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

e Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

e Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

o Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained
earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities

(b) Investment in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary
to determine control over the subsidiaries.

.ol the 1nvestment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the assomate or joinl \Qe
~gince the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or joint venture is included in the carrying amot nT
linvestment and is not tested for impairment individually.




Lava International Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the
year ended 31 March 2021

Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the
associate or joint venture.

If an entity’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the associate or joint
venture (which includes any long term interest that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the entity discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate or joint venture. If the associate or joint venture subsequently reports profits, the entity resumes
recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and a joint venture is shown on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit and loss.

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group.
When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss
on its investment in its associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is
objective evidence that the investment in the associate or joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the
Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate or joint
venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as ‘Share of profit of an associate and a joint venture’ in
the statement of profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and
procccds from disposal is recogniscd in profit or loss.

(¢) Current Vs Non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is
treated as current when it is:

e Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

e Held primarily for the purpose of trading

e Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

o  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

e Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

e Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

e Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. The Group classifies all other liabilities
as non-current. e SO

/\/S_F_‘ f‘I:):c(‘f-‘n-ed tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

)

- o«




Lava International Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the
year ended 31 March 2021

Operating cycle

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Group has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets
and liabilities as current and non-current.

(d) Property, plant and equipment
i Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any.
Cost directly attributable to acquisition are capitalised until the property, plant and equipment are ready for use, as
intended by the management.

ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent costs are capitalised on the carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
future economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Group and cost of the item can be
measured reliably. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced in regular
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as separate component of assets. All repair and maintenance are charged to
statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the asset after its use is included in the cost of the
respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss on the date of disposal or retirement.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is
classified as capital advances under the non-current assets and the cost of assets not put to use before such date are
disclosed under ‘Capital work in progress’.

iii. Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets as below:

Assets Useful Lives -
Office Equipment 3-5 Years
Furniture and fixtures* 3-5 Years
Demonstration Fixtures* 2-5 Years
Vehicles* 5 Years
Computer and Components* 3 Years
Plant and Machinery*
Jigs 1 Year
Other Plant and Machinery 5-15 Years
Electrical Installations 10 Years

*Based on technical evaluation, the management believes that the useful lives as given above best repr e'\enl the period
Ze0C) r which the management expects to use these assets. Hence the useful lives for these assets are d|t /}:.,m_[ 'oh useful
-~ %\ as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013.

~H

s¢hold Improvements are amortized over the lease term or 10 years whichever is less.




Lava International Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the
year ended 31 March 2021

v

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
(e) Intangible assets
i.  Recognition and initial measurement
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in the
statement of profit and loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Group.

iii. Amortisation

The useful lives of intangible assets is assessed as finite as stated below and the assets are amortised over their useful
lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that an intangible asset may be impaired.

Assets B Useful Lives B
Computer software (over license period) 1-5 Years
Internally generated software 3-5Years

The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the
asset is derecognized.

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is recognized as
an intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate all the following:

e The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale

. Its intention to complete the asset

Its ability to use or sell the asset

How the asset will generate future economic benefits

The availability of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset

The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during development,

Following the initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied requiring the
asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the
-asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortized on a straight line basis
over the period of expected future benefit from the related project, i.e., the estimated useful life of one to ten years.
Amortization is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. During the period of development, the assqt is testjd

for impairment annually. I
/ /D /




Lava International Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the
year ended 31 March 2021

(f) Leases

The Group adopted Ind AS 116 using the Modified retrospective method of adoption, with the date of initial application
on 1 April 2019. The Group has recognised a lease liability on initial application (i.e. April 1, 2019) at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial
application and right-of-use asset at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the balance sheet immediately before the date of initial
application.

The Group, as a lessee, recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for its leasing arrangements, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset.

The contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, if it involves the use of an identified asset and
the Group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset and has right to direct the use of the
identified asset. The cost of the right-of-use asset shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date plus any initial direct costs incurred.
The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment
losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the
straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset
(Refer note 36).

The Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses incremental borrowing rate.

The Group also elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the commencement date, have a
lease term of 12 months or less and do not contain a purchase option (short-term leases), and lease contracts for which
the underlying asset is of low value (low-value assets).

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to classify leases
as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in Ind AS 17. Therefore, Ind AS 116 does not have an
impact for leases where the Group is the lessor.

(g) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. 1f any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining
fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted
share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied
to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the

/@f“& e for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not £x¢éed the
"o~ Adhgsterm average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity opefaigs, or foy
Chaeferfdl -'}a‘i__arkel in which the asset is used. et
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(h) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Recognition and initial measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Classification and subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

e Debt instruments at amortised cost

e  Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

¢  Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair vaiue through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,
and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is most applicable to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (“EIR™) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is considered only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit and loss. This category is applicable to investments in mutual funds. Sontio 733
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b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or Joss in the statement of profit
and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the
equity to statement of profit and loss (P&L). Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as
interest income using the EIR method.

Equity Investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for
trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election to
present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such election on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit
and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value. All changes in fair value including
dividend are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition
A financial asset is de-recognised only when

e  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

¢ The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case,
the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.
Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition
of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits,
trade receivables and bank balance
b. Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

o @
/F?r recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines tha Wi
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ere has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not inci
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significantly, 12-month expected credit loss (ECL) is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such
that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

The Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The
provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and
is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the
statement of profit and loss. For the financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables,
ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The
allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Group does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilitics arc classificd, at initial rccognition, as financial liabilitics at fair valuc through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts,
financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified
as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at
the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL,
fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not
subsequently transferred to statement of profit and loss. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit and loss> - \
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'“-ﬂgé‘\(jl‘()ltp measure its financial instruments such as derivative at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Loans and borrowings

After initjal recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
EIR. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted
for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is
measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and
the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition,
no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets
which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing
those assets. If the Group reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the
reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business
model. The Group does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or
interest

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial asset and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(i) Derivative financial instrument

The Group uses derivative financial instruments i.e., forward and futures currency contracts to hedge its foreign
currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial
assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to statement of profit and loss. The Group has
not applied hedge accounting.

j) Fair value Measurement

Rair jvalue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an order

[ l efil
\ V_Hclwccn market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
: o “ thetransaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
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o Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
¢ Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted (Unadjusted) marked prices in the active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that js significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the management
or its expert verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents

(k) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

e Raw materials and spares: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to

their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

e Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is
determined on weighted average basis.

o Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on first in first out basis.

T - Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated ua:,ls of cgmpletion
| — dﬂ\f‘{he estimated costs necessary to make the sale. /
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(I) Revenue recognition

With effect from 1st April 2018, Ind AS 115 — “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” notified by MCA vide its
notification dated 28 March, 2018 which supersedes Ind AS 18 — “Revenue” and related Appendices.

Group account for revenue in accordance with Ind AS 115"Revenue from Contracts with customers" using the modified
retrospective method.

The Group has recognize revenue in accordance with Ind AS 115 by applying the following 5 steps:
I  Identify the contracts with the customers,

1T Identify the separate performance obligations,

Il Determine the transaction price of the contract,

IV Allocate the transaction price to each of the separate performance obligations, and

V  Recognize the revenue as each performance obligation is satisfied.

Sale of Goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the significant risk and rewards of ownership of the goods have been
passed to the buyer which generally coincides with delivery of goods, as per the contractual terms with customers.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually
defined terms of payment and is inclusive of excise duty and net of returns and allowances, trade discount, volume
rebates and value added taxes. The Group has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since
it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory and
credit risks.

The Group accounts for volume discount for pricing incentives to customers as a reduction of revenue based on estimate
of applicable discount/incentives.

Sale of Services

Revenue from sales of services is from installation of third party mobile applications in the handset and is recognized
by reference to the stage of completion, net of GST. Stage of completion is measured by reference to services performed
to date as a percentage of total services to be performed.

Interest

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest
income is recorded using the EIR. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does
not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividend Income
Dividend Income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the amount has been established.

Incentive Income
Group has recognized incentive income in form of, Merchant export incentive income (MEIS), Duty drawback income
based on export made, UPSDM income based on training given to apprentice.

Disaggregation of Revenue
See Note 29 (Segment Reporting) to Consolidated Financial Statements for our disaggregated revenues.

Contract Balances:
= .

Frdde Receivables

'-j&_b ivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional.
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Contract Assets
A contract asset is a right to consideration that is conditional upon factors other than the passage of time.

During financial year 2020-21, out of Rs. 20.27 million contract assets as on March 31, 2020, invoicing for 94.03% has
been done and Rs.1.21 million is pending for invoicing.

Balance as at March 31, 2020 20.27 million
Deduction on account of Reclassified to receivable (90.35) million
Recognized as revenue during the year 60.03 million
Balance as at March 31, 2021 10.04 million

Contract Liabilities

A Contract liabilities is an entity’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the entity has received
consideration (or the amount is due) from the customer.

Balance as at March 31, 2020 589.80 million
Deduction on account of revenues recognized during the year (378.72) million
Addition on account of transaction 135.98 million
Balance as at March 31, 2021 347.06 million

Changes in the contract asset and liability balances during current year, were a result of normal business activity and
not materially impacted by any other factors.

(m) Foreign currencies
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial stalements of the Group are measured using the respective currency of the primary
economic environment in which in which the entity in Group operates i.e. the “functional currency”. These financial
statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is also the functional currency of the parent Group. For each entity the
Group determines the functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entities at their respective functional currency
spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the group uses an
average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss with the
exception of the following:

e Exchange differences arising on monetary items that forms part of a reporting entity’s net investment in a foreign
operation are recognised in profit or loss in the separate financial statements of the reporting entity or the individual
financial statements of the foreign operation, as appropriate. In the financial statements that include the foreign
operation and the reporting entity (e.g., consolidated financial statements when the foreign operation is a
subsidiary), such exchange differences are recognised initially in OCI. These exchange differences are reclassified

from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the net investment. N\
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Non-fiionetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exch‘augg@_//
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
. translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation

of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in
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fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit
or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into INR at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the reporting date and their statements of profit or loss are translated at yearly average exchange rates. For practical
reasons, the group uses an average rate to translate income and expense items, if the average rate approximates the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are
recognised in OCIL. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OCI relating to that particular foreign operation
is recognised in profit or loss.

(n) Income taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted,
at the reporting date in India.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised either in other
comprehensive income or in equity. Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
Payments of tax as per Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) is included as part of current tax in statement of profit and
loss.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements as at reporting date. Deferred tax is
measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

o When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss

¢ Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised either in other comprehensive
iincome or in equity. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either i O€1 or
L dirBétly, 'In\equ ity. \
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

MAT is applicable to the Group. Credit of MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset only when it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the credit can be utilised. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible
to be recognised as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and loss account. The
Group reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to
the extent it is no longer probable that the Group will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

(o) Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions to the provident
fund are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year when an employee renders the related service. The
Group has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.

The Group operates an unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees. The cost of providing benefits under
this plan is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end, using the projected unit credit method and
charged to statement of profit and loss. Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the
asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability, are recognised immediately
in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they
occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Accumulated leave is treated as short-term employee benefit as the Group has no unconditional right to defer the
liability. The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. Such compensated absences are provided
for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are
immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss.

(p) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Warranty provisions

Provisions for warranty-related costs are recognised when the product is sold or service provided to the customer. Initial
recognition is based on historical experience. The initial estimate of warranty-related costs is revised annually.

Decommissioning liability

The Group records a provision for decommissioning costs of a leased facility. Decommissioning costs are provided at
the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows and are recognised as part of the
cost of the particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the
decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognised in the statement of
profit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as

_———appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or dedugted from the cost
iﬁfll e asset. b
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Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence
in the financial statements.

(q) Earnings per share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the Holding
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year excluding the treasury shares.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity holders of the Holding Company
(after adjusting the corresponding income/charge for dilutive potential equity shares) by the weighted average number
of Equity shares outstanding during the year, excluding treasury shares, plus the weighted average number of Equity
shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

(r) Segment reporting

Identification of segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker (CODM). Only those business activities are identified as operating segment for which the operating
results are regularly reviewed by the CODM to make decisions about resource allocation and performance measurement.

Inter-segment transfers
The Group generally accounts for inter-segment sales and transfers at cost plus appropriate margins.

Segment accounting policies
The Group prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for
preparing and presenting the financial statements of the Group as a whole.

(s) Share based payments

Employees (including senior executives) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions).

Equity-settled transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using Black
Scholes Option Pricing Model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity, over
the period in which the service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised
for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement
of profit and loss expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

\e conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ately vest. K . _
i




Lava International Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the
year ended 31 March 2021

Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award
is expensed immediately through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings
per share.

(t) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs to the extent directly attributable to the acquisition/construction of assets that necessarily take
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised along with the respective property, plant and
equipment up to the date such asset is ready for use. Other borrowing costs are charged to the statement of profit and
loss.

(u) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet and for the purpose of statement of cash flows comprise cash at banks
and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. These do not include bank balances earmarked/restricted for specific purposes.

(v) Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary to
match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within other income.

(w) Measurement of Earnings before Interest ,tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA)

Ind AS compliant Schedule III allows line items, sub-line items and sub-totals to be presented as an addition or
substitution on the face of the financial statements when such presentation is relevant to an understanding of the Group’s
financial position /performance.

Accordingly, the Group has elected to present earnings before net finance cost, tax, depreciation and amortization
(EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss. The Group measures EBITDA on the
basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In its measurement, the Group does not include depreciation and
amortization expense, interest income, finance costs, and tax expense.

(x) Treasury Shares

The group has created a Lava Welfare Trust (‘the trust”) for providing share-based payment to its employees. The group
uses the trust as a vehicle for distributing shares to employees under the employee remuneration schemes. The trust
buys Company’s shares from the employees of the Company as per the employee remuneration schemes. The group
treats the trust as its extension and shares held by the trust are treated as treasury shares.

Own equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from total equity. No
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity
instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and the consideration, if reissued, is recognised in general
reserve. Share options exercised during the reporting period are settled with treasury shares.



LAVA International Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Million unless otherwise stafvd)

3 Property, plant and equipment

Plant and Furniture and  Office equipment Computers Vehicles Demonstration Leasehold Land Electrical Total Capital work-In-

machinery fixtures fixtures improvements installations progress*
Gross Carrying Value
At 31 March 2019 608.46 44.48 96.49 186.19 13.70 692.96 440.28 30.04 4.04 1,116.64 =
Additions 2639 0.60 1.62 2.93 - - 0.51 - - 3205 2069
Disposals 25.39 3.64 5.76 32.01 - - 4934 - 325 119.39 -
Exchange difference 0.00 0.11 1.66 0.44 (0.20) 5289 0.90 - - 5580 -
At 31 March 2020 609.46 41.55 94.01 157.55 13.50 745.85 392.35 30.04 0.79 2,085.10 < 20.69
Additions 16539 - 0.84 10.90 6.39 51998 17.05 - - 720 55 32.57
Disposals 416 196 797 12 46 - - 442 - - 3097 20.51
Exchange difference 0.27 (181) (1.95) 5.72 (1.61) (27.64) (3 05) - 0.0] (30.06) -
At 31 March 2021 770.96 37.78 84.93 161.71 18.28 1,238.19 401.93 30.04 0.80 2,744.62 32.75 |
Accumulated Depreciation
At 31 March 2019 170.30 31.35 66.06 157.10 11.68 421.95 285.78 - 1.18 1145.40 - |
Charge for the year 88.66 7.11 17.86 23.81 1.04 5575 30.88 - 039 22550 -
Disposals 24 41 3.42 433 31.91 - - 48 49 - 144 114.00 -
Exchange difference - 0.04 118 (1.15) (0.75) 3176 2.22 - - 3330 s
At 31 March 2020 234.55 35.08 80.77 147.85 11.97 509.46 270.39 - 0.13 ,290.20 -
Charge for the year 87.40 3.40 9.36 9.77 0.25 16222 29.06 - 008 30154 -
Disposals 097 1.89 8.68 13.90 0.74 - 4.42 - - 3059 -
Exchange difference (0.45) 012 (3.20) 8.02 0.74 (14 76) 3.55 - - (7.98) =
At 31 March 2021 320.53 36.71 76.25 151.74 12.22 656.92 298.58 - 0.21 1,553.16 -
Net Carrying Value
At 31 March 2020 374.91 6.47 13.24 9.70 1.53 236.39 121.96 30.04 0.66 794.90 20.69
At 31 March 2021 450.43 1.07 8.68 9.97 6.06 581.27 103.37 30.04 0.59 1,191.46 32.75

*Capital work:

-progress includes leasehold improvement and plant and machinery
Note : Certain property, plant and equipment are hypothecated as collateral against borrowings, the details of which have been described in note 11
(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Million unless otherwise stated)

4 Intangible assets

Computer Internally generated Total Intangible assct under
Softwares and software development
Licenses

Gross Carrying Value

As at 31 March 2019 378.30 115.21 493.51 -
Additions - - - -
Deletion 0.17 - 0.17 -
Exchange difference 67.10 - 67.10 -
As at 31 March 2020 445.23 115.21 560.44 =
Additions 13.46 12.97 26.43 -
Deletion - - . -
Exchange difference (24.93) 1.50 (23.43) -
Adjustment

As at 31 March 2021 433.76 129.68 563.44 -
Accumulated Amortisation

As at 31 March 2019 304.46 62.00 366.46 -
Charge for the year 40.39 29.65 70.04 -
Disposal - - - -
Exchange difference 66.40 (0.00) 66.40 -
As at 31 March 2020 411.25 91.65 502.90 -
Charge for the year 32.17 21.69 53.86 -
Disposal - - - -
Exchange difference (26.14) 3.22 (22.92) -
Adjustment

As at 31 March 2021 417.28 116.56 533.84 -
Net Block

As at 31 March 2020 33.98 23.56 57.54 -
As at 31 March 2021 16.48 13.12 29.60 B

5 Right of use asset

Particulars Office building Factory building Warchouse Building Total

Gross Carrying Value

As at 31 March 2019 - s = =
Additions 7245 159.15 11.55 24315
Deletion -
As at 31 March 2020 72.45 159.15 11.55 243.15
Additions - - = =
Deletion 9.64 - 8.86 18.50
As at 31 March 2021 62.81 159.15 2.69 224.65
Accumulated Depreciation

As at 31 March 2019 - E = =
Additions 11.47 21.82 1.68 3497
Deletion

As at 31 March 2020 11.47 21.82 1.68 34.97
Additions 1147 2182 1.68 3497
Deletion 4.36 - 2.57 693
As at 31 March 2021 18.58 43.64 0.79 63.01
As at 31 March 2020 60.98 137.33 9.87 | 208.18-
As at 31 March 2021 44.23 115.51 1.90
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(A1 amounts in Indian Rupees Million unless otherwise stated)

6 Financial assets

As at 31 March 2021

31 Mureh 2020

6 (a) Non-current investments (Unquoted)

No of Units Amount  No of Units Amount

Investmients in equity instruments of other entities (at fair value through other comprehensive income)
Equity Share of .001 SGD each fully paid up of Abhriya Pte. Ltd.* 63,860 - 63,860 -
500 (31 March 2020: 500)Equity Share of 10,000 CNY each fully paid up of Shenzen Inone Technology Co, 82 00
Limited (Formerly known as Xolo Technology (Shenzen) Limited). 500 58.25 5 60.17
20,000 (31 March 2020: 20,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up of Sri Venketeswara Mobile &
Electronics Manufacturing Hub Private Limited 20,000 0.20 20,000 020

58.45 60.37
Aggrepate amount of unquoted investment 58.45 6037

*As at 31 March 2021, the Group has fair valued the investment at Nil (31 March 2020 - Nil) amount as there is no future economic benefit expected from the investment.

6 (b) Current investments

As at 31 March 2021

31 March 2020

No of Units Amount _ No of Unils Amount
Investment in Mutual funds (Quoted)(at fair value through profit or loss)
Union Capital Protection Oriented Fund - Series 8 - - 2,000,000 20.69
LIC MF - Ultra Short Term Funds - Regular Plan Growth 9,471 10.00

10.00 20.69
Apgregate amount of quoted investment 10.00 20.69
Market value of quoted investments 10.00 20.69
/

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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6 (c) Trade receivables
As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Unsecured
- Considered good 12,352.54 13,148.12
- Receivables from related parties, considered good (refer note 30) 0.44 -
- Considered doubtful 49.04 54.06
12,402.02 13,202.18
Less:
- Provision for doubtful debts (49.04) (54.06)
- Provision for Expected Credit Loss (ECL)* (728.80) -
11,624.18 13,148.12

For terms and conditions relating to trade receivables, refer note 27.

* To comply with the requirement of Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments, the Group has created total Expected credit loss of Rs. 728.80 million, out of which Rs. 474.80
million pertains to earlier financial years. As it was impracticable to ascertain the expected credit loss for each of respective earlier financial year, therefore, Rs. 355.29 million
(net of deferred tax asset of Rs 119.51 million), in compliance with the requirements of para 44 of IND AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and

Errors, has been adjusted to the retained earnings. Expected credit loss of Rs. 254.00 million pertains to the F'Y 2020-21 and has been recognised as expense for the year.

6 (d) Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:
On current accounts
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months #

Cash on hand

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

158.53 96.25
77.27 81.27
2.95 8.86
238,75 186.38

# Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the

respective short-term deposit rates

6 (e) Other bank balances

Deposits with remaining maturity for more than three months but less than twelve months #

6 (f) Loans (Non Current)

Security deposits
- Considered good
- Considered doubtful

Less: Provision for doubtful deposits

6 (g) Loans (Current)

Security deposits

6 (h) Other financial assets (Non-Current)

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise

Other receivable

Bank deposits

Bank deposits with remaining maturity of more than twelve months #
Interest accrued on bank deposits

# Includes margin money deposits under lien (refer note 6 (d) ,6 (e) and 6 (h)):-

- against letter of credit facility

- against amount paid under prolest (excluding interest accrued) (refer note 31 (B) (b)(i))
P '..\\

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)

2

As al 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

1,612.66

1,301.75

1,612.66

1,301.75

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

30.32 26.15
492 :
35.24 26.15
(4.92) .

30.32 26.15

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

9.59

11.99

11.99

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

19.33 19.33
1.06 0.86
0.43 031

20.82 20.50

91546 64831
30000 300.00
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(Al amounts in ficlian Rupees Million unless otherwise stated)

6 (i) Other financial assets (Current)

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise

Interest accrued on bank deposits
Derivative asset

- Considered good

Total

7 Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)

Raw materials and components (refer note 1 & 2 below)
Finished goods (refer note 1 & 2 below)

Traded goods (refer note 2 below)

Spares (refer note 1 & 2 below)

Note 1 including stock in transit
- Raw materials and components

Note 2 The above inventory is net of :-

a) Write down of inventory from cost to net realisable value

Finished goods
Traded goods
Spares
b) Provision for inventory obsolescence
Finished goods
Traded goods
Spares .

Raw materials, components and semi-finished goods

8 (a) Other assets (Non-Current)
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated

Capital advances
Prepaid expenses

8 (b) Other assets (Current)
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated

Prepaid expenses

Balance with statutory/ government authorities
Advances to vendors

- Considered good

- Advances to related parties, considered good (refer note 30)

- Considered doubtful

Less: Provision for doubtful advances

Others
Total A+B+C+D)

9 Advance tax assets (nef)

Advance tax asset

(4)
(B)

©
)

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

12372 149.27

- 578
339.96 ,149.69
463.68 1,304.74

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

1,429.14 649.23
922.46 242.14
1,277.32 534.52
809.71 938.87
4,438.03 2,364.76
230.09 99.58
11.22 3.62
529 479
5813 108.93
541 3.09
4.53 4.69
102.40 108.97
5.38 -

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

50.92 57.42
0.23 0.58
51.15 58.00

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

41.44 17.36
799 53 1,328.59
2,505 58 2,694.56
; 0.04
56.18 65.48
2,561.76 2,760.08
(56.18) (65.48)
2,505.58 2,694.60
762.14 152.80
4,108,69 1,193.35

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

0.97

0.97
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10 Equity Share capital and Instrmaents entirely equity in nature

Authorised shares

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

147,900,000 (31 Maich 2020 :147,900,000) equity shaies of Rs 10 each 1,479.00 1,479,00
100,000 (31 March 2020 : 100,000) Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs 10/- each 1.00 1.00
500,000 (31 Maich 2020: 500,000) Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs 100 each 30.00 S0.00
1,530.00 1,530.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
124,866,902 (31 March 2020 : 124,866,902) equity shares of Rs.10 each 1,248 67 1,248.67
100,000 (31 March 2020 :Nil) Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs 10/- each* 1.00 -
500,000 (31 Maich 2020 :500,000) Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs 100 each 50,00 50,00
Tolal issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 1,299.67 1,298.67

(a) Reconciliation of the shares oufstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting ycar

Equity shares

Amount No of Shares
As at31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
At the beginning of the yeat 1,248.67 1,248.67 124,866,902 124,866,902
Issued during the year - < - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,248.67 1,248.67 124,866,902 124,866,902
Instruments entirely cquity in nature -Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)
Amount No of Shares
As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2021  As at 31 March 2020
At the beginning of the yea 50,00 50.00 500,000 500,000
Transfer during the year 1.00 - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 51.00 50.00 500,000 500,000

(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Group has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equily shares is entitled to one vote per share and dividends in proportion to their
shareholding. In the event of liquidation of the Group, the holders of equity shares will be entitled (o receive residual assets of the Group's after distiibution of all preferential amounts. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

Terms/ rights attached to Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)
i Duiing the year ended 31 Match 2018, the Group has issued 500,000 Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs. 100 each. The preference shares shall collectively be
entitled to dividend of 0.0001% of the agpregate face value of the preference shares

As per the tetms of Subscription and Shareholders Agieement , the pieference shares may be converted, at any lime at the discretion of the CCPS holder, into fixed number of equity shares
(calculated al 3 48% of the shaie capital at funding date ie. 8,32 number of equity shares per CCPS) 1f any of the preference shares have not been converted into equity shares within 19
yeats and 11 months, such remaining preference shares shall be automatically and compulsorily converted into such number of equity shares upon the expiry of such period

ii. Duwing financial year 2017-18, the Group has issued 100,000 Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs, 10 each for a consideration of Rs 520.00 million. The CCPS shall
carry a coupon of 0.0001% and shall be non-cumulative in nature, which is to be declared at the discretion of the shareholder of the Group
The number of shares Lo be allotted upon conversion of CCPS shall be based upon the conversion price arrived at on the conversion date, as per below condition defined in the agreement
In the event Gloup is not ablc to get listed on a 1ecognised stock exchange within four years, the Group or Promoters shall buy-back or purchase all of the shares and CCPS held by CCPS
holder at a price not less than the Sale Price. Sale Price shall be the Subscription Price and a return of 9% per annum compounded annually from Closing date till the date of purchase of all
subscription shates or CCPS In view of the same, the Group has accrued interest @ 9% every year. In response of the excercise the option available afier 4 years, Group has to issue
13,42,208 equity shares against 1,00,000 CCPS

* I the cumrent year, based on the terms of Investment agreement, and confinnation of the number of shares to be issued, and price thereof, CCPS which was ealier classified under 'Long
Teim Boirowing' now meets the criterion of Equity and accordingly the amount has been reclassified as ‘Instruments entirely equity in natare’ and ‘Security premium’

(c) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:
No of Shares
As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
G LTl TR T85 785 122,785,785

Equity shates alloted as fully paid bonus shaies

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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(d ) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Group:*

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid No of Shares Percentage sharehoing

31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Hari Om Rai 45,083,890 45,083,890 36,11% 36.11%
Sunit Bhalla 28,390,372 28,390,372 22.74% 22.74%
Vishal Sehgal 22,104,352 22,104,352 17.70% 17 70%
Shailendra Nath Rai 11,746,028 11,746,028 9.41% 941%
Shibani Sehgal 7,260,720 7,260,720 5.81% 581%

*As per records of the Group, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received fiom shareholders regarding beneficial inteiest, the above shaieholding
represents legal ownerships of shares

(e) The Group has not issued any shares pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash or bought back any shares during the period immediately preceding five yems fiom the
reporting date.

(£) Shares reserved for issue under options :
For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock option (ESOP) plan of the Group , please refer note 32

11 Tinancial liabilitics
11(a) Long term borrowings

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Indian rupee term loan fiom banks (secwed) (refer note I) - 3358
Nil (Previous yeats :100,000) Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs 10/- each (refer note 11) - 520,00

= 553.58

Current maturities of long term borrowings [1efer note 11 (e) & 1 1(a)(Note [)] 65.88 119,70
Note 1
(i) Indian rupee term loan fiom 1CICI bank of Nil amount(31 March 2020: Rs, 34.88 million) which carried interest @ 11.15% p.a. (31 Maich 2020:11,80% p.a.)and repayable in thirty
equal quarterly instalments with first payment commencing from the 7th month of date of disbursement. The loan was 1epaid by 15 April 2020. The loan was secured on first pari-passu
chaige basis by way of hypothecation of movable fixed assets (present and future) and further secured on second pari-passu charge basis by way of hypothecation of overall current assets
(both present and future) of the Company. Further, the loan had been personally guaranteed by certain directors of the Group.
(ii) Indian rupee term loan from HDFC bank amounting to Rs. 57.11 million (31 Maich 2020: 119.42 million )which carries interest @ 8.80%-10.60% p.a (31 Maich 2020:11.15% p.a.)
and repayable in equal monthly instalments starting after 6 months from month of first disbursement. The loan is to be repaid by 6 November 2021. The loan is secured on first pari-passu
charge basis by way of hypothecation of machinery and equipment purchased fiom the term loan and further secured on second pari-passu charge basis by way of hypothecation of overall
current assets (current and future) of the Company. Further, (he loan has been personally guaranteed by certain directors of the Group
(iii) Indian rupee term loan has been obtained during the period from Punjab national bank (erstwhile United Bank Of Tndia) amounting to Rs. 11.20 million . The amount outstanding
against the said loan is Rs. 8.76 million (31 March 2020: Nil) which carries interest @ 8.25% p.a (31 March 2020:Nil). and repayable in 18 equal monthly instalments after a moratorium
period of 6 months from date of disbursement of loan, The loan is scheduled to be 1epaid by 31 March 2022, The loan is secured on first pari-passu charge basis by way of hypothecation
overall current assets (current and future) of the Group. Further, the loan has been personally guaranteed by certain directors of the Group and their relatives
Note 1l
During financial year 2017-18, the Group has issued 100,000 Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs. 10 each for a consideration of Rs 520.00 million. The CCPS shall
cairy a coupon of 0.0001% and shail be non-cumulative in nature, which is to be declared at the discietion of (he shareholder of the Group
The preference shares may be converted into the equity shares at any time at the discretion of the CCPS holder, subject to the tenns of the agreement If any of the preference shares have
not been converted to equity shares within 10 years from the allotment date, then such remaining preference shares shall be compulsorily converted inlo equity shares upon the expiry of
such period
The number of shates to be allotted upon conversion of CCPS shall be based upon the conversion price arrived at on the conversion date, as per below condition defined in the agreement
In the event Group is not able to gel listed on a recognised stock exchange within four years, the Group o1 Promoters shall buy-back or purchase all of the shates and CCPS held by CCPS
holder at a price not less than the Sale Price. Sale Price shall be the Subscription Price and a retum of 9% per annun compounded annually fiom Closing date 1ill the date of puichase of all
subscription shares or CCPS.In view of the same, the Group has accrued interest @ 9% every year.
In the current year, based on (he terms of Investiment agreement, and confirmation of the munber of shares to be issued, and price thereof, CCPS which was earlier classified under ‘Long
Term Borrowing' now meels the criterion of Equity and accordingly the amount has been reclassified as ‘Instruments entirely equity in nature’ and ‘Security premium'

11 (b) Short-term borrowings As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Short term loan (unsecured) 240.00 -
Cash credit fiom banks (secured)* 72532 1,094 42

965,32 1,004.42

*Secwed by way of hypothecation on first pari- passu charge basis, on oveiall curient assets of the Group (current and future) and collateral securities/personal guaiantees of promoter
directors and relative of promoter directors. The said loan is further secuied:

(1) by way of a first charge of hypothecation on pari-passu basis, of existing and future movable fixed assets of the Group excluding software and machineries/ assets created by way of
term loans from other banks and financial institutions.

(2) by way of a second charge of hypothecation on pari-passu basis, of such existing and future movable fixed assets of the bomower such machineres! nther assets which are created by
way of term loans fiom other banks and financial institutions. A
The cash ciedit is repayable on demand and carries interest @ 10.75% per annum to 12,10% per annum

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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11 (¢) Trade payables

Trade payables (refer note 33 for details of dues to micro and small enterprises)
Payable to related parties (refer note 30)

11 (@) Other financial liabilitics (Non-current)

Interest accrued on borrowings (refer note 10(b)(ii))
Lease Liability (refer note 37)

11 (e) Other financial liabilities (current)

Cunent maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 11(a))
Payable for capital purchases

Security deposits

Interest accrued on borrowings

Employee payables

Lease Liability (refer note 37)

12 (a) Provisions (non-current)

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer note 28)
Other provisions

Provision for deconunissioning liabilities #

12 (b} Provisions (current)

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for pratuity (refer note 28)
Provision for leave benefits

Other provisions
Provision for warranties*

As at 31 March 2021

As at31 March 2020

5.08181 4.96537
- uls
5,081.51 4,965.52

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

3 120 40
162.60 199.96
162.60 320.36

As at 31 March 2021

As at31 March 2020

65.88 119.70
47.26 083
922.00 28252
0,95 699
43.81 103.03
23.75 24,11
1,103.65 537.18

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

48.53 4296
3.02 3.02
51.55 45.98

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

17.52 1333
27.53 34.65
45.05 47.98
203.30 186.12
203.30 186.12
248.35 234.10

* The Group provides warranly on it's products by giving an undertaking (o repair/replace items lo the customers, which fails to perform satisfactorily during the warranty period Provision made
represents the amount of the expecled cost of meeting such obligations of repair/replacement The liming of the outflows is expecled (o be in next 12 months (31 March 2020 : 12 months)

At the beginning of the year

Atising duing the year

Less :Utilized heversed during the year
At the end of the year

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

186.12 31863
1,143.71 854 51
(1,126.53) (487.02)
203.30 186.12

# Under few operaling lease agreements entered by the Group's, it has (o incurr restoration cost for restoring lease premises 1o the orignal condition at the time of expiry of lease period The

timing of the outflows is expecled to be in next 3 years

At the beginning of the year
Arising during the year
At the end of the year

13 Other current liabilities

Advance from customers
Value added tax/Central sales tax payable
Tax deductable at source
Other statutory liabilities

14 Current Tax Liabilities (net)

Provision for income tax*

*Net of advance tax and TDS receivable amounting to Rs, 2,920.77 million (31

Maich 2020: Rs. 2,743.03 million)
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As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

3.02 430
- (128)
3.02 3.02

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

386.20 1,462.77
7423 67.63
18 54 11.81
3054 16.74

509.51 1,558,95

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

361.14

367.19

367.19

36104




LAVA International Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Al amornts in ndian Rupees Million wless otherwise stined)

15

16

17

18

19

Revenue from operations

Sale of products

Sale of services

Other operating revenues
- Scrap sale

- Export incentives

Revenue from operations (net)

Other income

Interest income on financial asset at amortised cost

Interest income on fixed deposits with banks

Interest income on others

Net gain on sale of mutual fund investments

Fair value gain on derivative financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment

Provision for doubtful debts written back

Gain on investment at fair value through profit or loss

Exchange differences (net)

Miscellaneous income

Cost of raw material and components consumed

Inventory materials at the beginning of the year

Purchase during the year

Less: Inventory materials at the end of the year

Cost of raw material and components consumed*®

*(net of CVD acciued including 1ecoverable charges for delayed payment) (refer note 35)

(Increasc) / decrease in inventories

Inventorics at the end of the year
Traded goods

Spares for handsets

Finshed goods

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Traded goods

Spares for handsets

Finshed goods

Change in inventories

Employee benefit expenses

Salary, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other fund
Gratuity expense (refer note 28)

Share based payment expense

Staff welfare, recruitment and training

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

For the year Ended
31 March 2021

For the year Ended
31 March 2020

54,883.67 51,265.36
231.02 1,319.36
4.78 5.70
9.27 52.87
55,128.74 52,643.29
For the year Ended  For the year Ended

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

135 6.44
74.15 116.22
0.15 0.18
3.09 =
- 13.35
0.99 .
2.00 =
< 31.89
2631 13.11
108.04 181.19
For the year Ended  For the year Ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
649.23 909.88
12,346.66 11,045.84
(1.429.14) (649.25)
11,566,75 11,306,49
For the year Ended  For the year Ended

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

1,277.32 534.52
809.71 938.87
922 46 242 14

534,52 876.35
938.87 866.58
24214 1,586.20
(1,293.96) 1,613.60

For the year Ended
31 March 2021

For the year Ended
31 March 2020

1,557.08 1,762.22
48 80 60.86
1523 14 35
8554 -

195.57 153.25

1,902.22 1,990.68




LAVA International Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Million unless othzrwise stated)

20 Other expenses

21

22

Power and fuel

Rent

Rates and taxes

Insurance

Repair and maintenance - others

Advertisement and marketing expenses

Sales promotion, Scheme expenses and Expected Credit Loss Provision [refer Note 6(c) for ECL]
Freight and cartage

Outsourced salary cost

Travelling and conveyance

Communication costs

Warranty

Legal and professional fees

Payment to auditor (refer details below)

Exchange differences (net)

Corporate social responsibilty expense (refer note 34)
Advances written off

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment

Fair value loss on derivative financial instrumment at fair value through profit or loss
Loss on investment at fair value through profit or loss
Net loss on sale of mutual fund investments
Miscellaneous expenses

Payment to auditor *

As auditor:
Audit fee
Tax audit fee

For the year Ended
31 March 2021

For the year Ended
31 March 2020

42.85 47.54
59.17 134.54
4.70 14 46
11.31 12.45
68.71 84 98
1,675.10 1,469.56
496.09 641.86
281.66 198.51
3922 2637
3432 119.07
7.62 12.17
1,143.71 854,51
157.04 168.84
3,95 4.80
69.89 -

3565 4.00
8.66 40 33

- 3.27

10.93 -

- 0.92

- 0.17
11.91 3348
4,162.49 3,871.83
For the year Ended  For the year Ended

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

3.60 4.50
0.35 030
3.95 4.80

(*Audit Fee for the year Ended 31 March 2020 relates to Previous Auditor and for the year ended 31 March 2021 relates to current Auditors)

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation expense

- on Property, Plant and Equipment

- on Right of use Asset

Amortisation expense on Intangible Assets

Finance costs

Interest on

-Term loan

-Cash credit

-Lease liability

-Security deposits

-Instruments entirely liability in nature
-Others

Bank charges

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

For the year Ended
31 March 2021

For the year Ended
31 March 2020

301.54 22550

3497 34.97

53.86 70.04

390.37 330.51
For the year Ended  For the year Ended

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

14.05 27.85
10697 104.72
24.98 27.11
7.36 3.90

- 46.93
47.10 12.35
85.30 167.08
285.76 389.94
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Notes to C lidated fi ial stat ts for the year ended 31 March 2021
(4t amounts in Indian Rupees Million unless otherwise stafed)

23 Income tax

(a) The major components of income tax expense for the year ended as follows are:

31 March 2021 31 Mareh 2020
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge 332.67 201.60
Adjustments in respect of income tax of previous year (30.80) 2299
Deferred tax :
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences . (193.66) (35.73)
Total tax expense on profit for the period (a) 108.21 188.86
Other comprehensive income
Deferred tax related to items recognised in other comprehensive income during in the year:
- Re-measurement losses of defined benefit plan (0.41) (0.21)
- Change in fair value of FVOCI equity instruments -
Total tax expense on other comprehensive income of the year (b) (0.41) (0.21)
Total tax expense on total comprehensive income for the period (a) + (b) 107.79 188.65
(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Profit before tax 1,834.29 1,266.47
Applicable tax rate 25.17% 34.94%
Expected tax expense (A) 461.69 442,55
Expenses not considered in determining taxable profit 33.10 (0.24)
Income not considered in determining taxable profit (3.93) (10.87)
Income exempt from tax (345.23) (303.02)
Impact of change in tax rates (0.08) (26 43)
Impact of deduction u/s 80JJAA - (11.44)
Tax pertaining to earlier years (30.80) 22,99
Difference in overseas tax rates - :
Reversal of Deferred tax of Earlier Year F :
Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was recognized 875 54 31
Others (15.29) 21.00
Total adjustments (B) (353.48) (253.69)
Actual tax expense [C= A+B] 108.21 188.86
Tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss 108.21 188.86
~\
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Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Million unless otherwise stated)

(c) Deferred tax

Deferred tax relates to the following:

Deferred tax assets on account of:

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Property, plant and equipment (82.03) (98.70)
Employee benefits and other payable (23.56) 31.77)
Provision for ECL & doubtful Advances (refer note 6 (¢)) (209.92) (41.77)
Provision for obsolescence inventories (14.00) .
Fair valuation of investment 0.36 (0.32)
Unrealised profit on unsold inventory - (3.80)
Others 0.73)
Deferred tax related to other comprehensive

income of the year:

Re-measurement losses of defined benefit plan 3.77 4.19
Change in fair value of FVTOCI equity (2.31) (2.31)
instruments

Deferred tax liability on account of:

Tax on custom duty (43B) to be paid in future years (refer note 35) 9858 259.70
Fair valuation of investment - -
Others - -
Net deferred tax liability including other (229.11) 84.49

comprehensive income for the neriod

Movement in deferred tax assets for the period ended 31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020 other

Recognised in

Recognised in
Retained Earnings

Recognised in
profit and loss

31 March 2021

comprchensive

income
Property, plant and equipment (98.70) - 16.67 (82.03)
Employee benefits and other payable 31.77) 822 (23.56)
Provision for ECL & doubtful Advances (refer 41.77) (48.64) (119.51) (209.92)
note 6 (c))
Provision for obsolescence inventories - (14.00) - (14.00)
Fair valuation of investment (0.32) - 0.68 - 0.36
Unrealised profit on unsold inventory (3.80) 380 s
Others (0.73) - 073 - -
Deferred tax related to other comprehensive -
income of the year:
Re-measurement losses of defined benefit plan 419 (0.42) 377
Change in fair value of FVTOCI equity (2.31) 231)
instruments -
Deferred tax liability on account of: -
Tax on custom duty (43b) to be paid in future 259.70 (161 12) 98.58
years
Fair valuation of investment -
Others - - - - -
Total 84.49 (0.42) (193.66) (119.51) (229.11)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Movement in deferred tax assets for the year ended 31 March

2020

Property, plant and equipment

Employee benefits and other payable
Provision for doubtful debts and advances
Provision for obsolescence inventories

Fair valuation of investment

Unrealised profit on unsold inventory

Others

Deferred tax related to other comprehensive
income of the year:

Re-measurement losses of defined benefit plan
Change in fair value of FVTOCI equity
instruments

Deferred tax liability on account of:

Tax on custom duty (43b) to be paid in future
years

DDT on undistributed profit of associate
Property, plant and equipment

Provision for obsolescence inventories
Others

Total

Earnings per share (EPS)

The computation of earnings per share is as follow:

Nominal value of equity shares

Asat  Recognised in  Recognised in profit As at

31 March 2019 other and loss 31 March 2020
comprehensive
income

(72.81) (25.89) (98.70)

(48.68) 16.91 (31.77)

(30.83) - (10.94) 41.77)

(19.44) - 19.44 -

. (0.32) (0.32)
(2.49) - (1.31) (3.80)
(3.45) - 2.72 0.73)

4.40 0.21) 4.19
(2.31) - - (2.31)
291.17 (31.47) 259.70
3.18 (3.18)
117 (1.17)
0.52 (0.52)
120.44 (0.21) (35.73) 84.49

Profit attributable to equity shareholders for computing basic and dilutive EPS (A)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period for computing Basic EPS (B)

Dilutive effect of share based payments on weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the

period

Dilutive effect of compulsory convertible preference shares on weighted average number of equity shares

outstanding during the period

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period for computing Diluted EPS (C )

Basic earning per share (A/B)
Diluted earning per share (A/C)
Adjusted Basic Earning per share *
Adjusted Diluted Earning per share *

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

10
1,726.08

124,866,902

6,375,147

5,689,744
136,931,793

13.82
12.61
3.46
3.15

10
1,077 61

124,866,902

6,375,147

5,689,744
136,931,793

8.63
7.87
2.16
1.97

* After the year end, but before issuance of financial statements, the Company has given effect to stock split by way of split of Face Value of equity shares
from Rs. 10/~ to Rs. 5/-. Also, the company has issued bonus shares to the equity shareholder's in the ratio of 1:1. Adjusted EPS has been calculated as per the

requirement of Para 64 of Ind AS 33 - Earnings Per Share
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25 Fair value measurement

25 a) The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories are as under:

Notes 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
FVTPL | FVTOCI | Amortised FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised
Cost Cost
Assets
Non-current assets
Financial assets
Investments 6(a) - 58.45 - - 60.37 -
Loans 6 (f) - - 30.32 - - 26.15
Others 6 (h) - - 20.82 - * 20.50
- 58.45 51.14 - 60.37 46.65
Current assets
Financial assets
Investments 6(b) 10.00 - - 20.69 - -
Trade receivables 6(c) - - 11,624.18 - - 13,148.12
Cash and cash equivalents 6 (d) - - 238.75 - - 186.38
Other bank balances 6(e) - - 1,612.66 - - 1,301,75
Loans 6(g) - - 9.59 - - 11.99
Derivative asset 6 (i) - - - 5.78 - -
Others 6 (i) E - 463.68 - - 1.298.96
10.00 - 13,948.86 26.47 - 15,947.20
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 11(a) - - - - - 553.58
Other financial liabilities 11 (d) - - 162.60 - - 320.36
- - T0Z.60 - - §73.94
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 11 (b) - - 965.32 . - 1,094 42
Trade payables 11 (c), 33 - - 5,081.81 - - 4,965.52
Derivative liability 11 (e) = - - ' & 5
Other financial liabilities 11 (e) - - 1,103.65 - - 537.18
- - 7,150.78 - - 6,597.12

The fair values of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other current financial asset, trade payables and other current financial liabilities are considered
to be same as their carrying values due to their short term nature.

The carrying amounts of other items carried at amortised cost are reasonable approximation of their fair values on respective reporting date.

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.
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25 b) Fair value hierarchy and valuation techniques used to determine fair values:

To provide an indication about the reliability of inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial instrument into three levels
prescribed under the accounting standard. The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s assets and liabilities

Quantitative disclosures of air value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as :
Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices in  Significant observable Significant unobservable

At 31 March 2021 .\ . . Total
active markets inputs inputs
(Level T) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Asscts measured at FVTPL
Investment in mutual funds 10.00 - - 10.00
Asscts measured at FVTPL
Derivative asset - - - -
Asscts measured at FVTOCI
Investment in equity instruments 5845 58.45
Fair value measurement using
Quoted pricesin  Significant observable Significant unobservable Total
At 31 March 2020 active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Asscts measured at FVTPL
Investment in mutual funds 20.69 - - 20.69
Assets measured at FYTPL
Derivative asset 5.78 5.78
Asscts measured at FVTOCI
Investment in equity instruments* - - 60,37 60.37

* Investment in Abhriya Pte Ltd. has been valued at zero value i e at fair value and it has been shown in other reserve amounting to Rs 7.69 million in
Reserve and surplus

- There were no transfers between the Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the years presented
- There is no change in the valuation technique during the period

Valuation techniques used to derive Level 1 fair values

The fair values of investments in mutual fund units is based on the net asset value (‘NAV’) as stated by the issuers of these mutual fund units in the
published statements as at Balance Sheet date. NAV represents the price at which the issuer will issue further units of mutual fund and the price at which
issuers will redeem such units from the investors

Valuation techniques used to derive Level 2 fair values

Derivative asset/ liability representing forward foreign exchange contracts have been fair valued using dealer/counter party quotes at balance sheet date
Valuation techniques uscd to derive Level 3 fair values
Inputs for the assets or habilities that are not based on observable market data. A one percent change in the unobservable mputs used in fair valuation of

Level 3 assets doesn’t have a significant impact in its value
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26 Capital management

The Group’s objectives while managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to provide adequate returns for its
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. The Group's policy is generally to optimise borrowings at an operating Group level within an
acceptable level of debt. The Group's policy is to borrow using a mixture of long-term and short-term debts together with cash generated to meet
anticipated funding requirements

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is calculated as underlying net debt divided by total capital plus underlying net debt. The
Group’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio below 40%. The Group measures its underlying net debt as total debt reduced by cash and cash equivalents.
The Group monitors compliance with its debt covenants. The Group has complied with all debt covenants at all reporting dates

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Borrowings 1,031.20 1,767.70
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (238.75) (186.38)
Net debt 792.45 1,581.32
Equity 15,891.15 14,080.59
Total capital 15,891.15 14,080.59
Capital and net debt 16,683.60 15,661.91
Gearing ratio (%) 4.75% 10.10%
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27 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and overdrafts, and trade payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities
is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various financial assets such as trade receivables, cash, and short-term deposits, which arise directly
from its operations. The Group also holds mutual fund investments and enters into derivative transactions

The main risks arising fiom the Group’s financial instruments ate price risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk, foreiga currency risk, and credit risk.

The Board of Directors review and agree policies for managing each of these risks which are summarised below.

Price risk

The Group is mainly exposed to the price risk due to its investment in equity instruments and mutual funds. The price risk arises due to uncertainties about the
future market values of these investments. In order to manage its price risk arising from investments in mutual funds, the Group diversifies its portfolio in
accordance with the limits set by the risk management policies. The Group does not have significant investment in equity instruments.

Set out below is the impact of a 1% movement in the NAV of mutual funds on the Group’s profit before tax:

As at 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Effect on profit before tax:

NAV increase by 100 bps 0.10 021
NAV decrease by 100 bps (0.10) (0.21)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s borrowings with floating interest rates The Group’s policy is
to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed, floating rate borrowings
The following table provides a breakdown of the Group’s fixed and floating rate borrowings:

As at 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Fixed rate borrowings - 520.00
Floating rate borrowings 1,031.20 1,247.70
Total 1,031.20 1,767.70

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, being a 0.5% increase or decrease in interest rate, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax due to the impact on floating rate borrowings,

As at 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Effect on profit before tax:

PLR*- decrease by 50 bps 5.15 6.23
PLR*- increase by 30 bps (5.15) (6.23)

*Prime Lending Rate (‘PLRs’) set by individual Indian banks in respect of their loans
Credit risk

The Group is also exposed to credit risk from trade receivables, term deposits, liquid investments and other financial instruments.

(iy Customer credit risk is managed by the Group’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. All customers are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an on-going basis. The Group is exposed to credit risk in the event of
non-payment by customers. An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by grouping the receivables in homogeneous group. Trade receivables are
non-interest bearing and are generally on original credit terms of 30 to 180 days depending upon category and nature of customers. Considering the request of
certain distributors for becoming more competitive under the current market scenario and 1o enhance the overall market share, the management has decided to
extend the credit terms on case-to-case basis to its distributors which shall be helpful to penetrate the potential opportunities of enhancing the overall market share
For this purpose, the management has done credit evaluation on the distributors based on their business relationships with the Group and the market credibility as
well as established a mechanism of monitoring the availability and marketability of inventory levels lying with the retailer network

Trade receivables (refer note 6(c)) include amounts (see below for aged analysis) of Rs.7852.15 million (31 March 2020 : Rs. 5,774.08 million ) with the extended
credit period at the reporting date. To ensure the recovery in such cases, the Group keeps monitoring the stocks Jevels lying with the distributors and in the market
with the retail network through its field sales forces. The Group territory managers are ensuring that the stocks available in the retail market are in marketable
position and are also monitoring the movement of products, which helps the Group to keep the overall control that the recoveries are certain and not dependent
only upon the financial strength of any distributor, In the post COVID scenario, the Group expects to benefit from the Atmanirbhar Bharal (self-reliant [ndia)
initiatives of the government of India, the increased thrust on manufacturing in India resulting in enhanced competitiveness of its products which in turn shall be
helpful to the Group’s distributors (o reduce the inventory levels and achieve higher sales. Considering the above, the Group is confident of the recoveries of its
dues with extended credit period and the management is of the view that these amounts are completely recoverable within the extended credit period. Based on
their credit evaluation, management considers these trade receivables as high quality and accordingly, no life time expected credit losses are recognized on such
receivables. The Group considers that trade receivables are not credit impaired as these are receivable from credit worthy counterparties. To comply with the
requirement of Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments, the Group has created total ECL of Rs, 728 .80 million, out of which Rs, 474 80 million pertains to earlier
financial years. As it was impracticable to ascertain the ECL for each of respective earlier financial year, Rs, 355,29 million (net of deferred tax asset of Rs 119.51
million), in compliance with the requirements of para 44 of IND AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, has been adjusted to
the retained earnings. Expected credit loss of Rs. 254.00 million pertains to the FY 2020-21 and has been recogmised gs expense for the year. For terms and
conditions relating to related party receivables, refer note 30
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(ii) The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, term deposits, etc. is considered negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks

with high quality external credit ratings

Apeing based on original credit terms but not impaired receivables is as follows:

s at 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
0-180 days 4,549.88 7,428.10
180-365 days 2,187.11 3,006.37
| yeur plus 5,6065.03 2,767.71
Totul 12,402.02 13,202,18

The Group has provisions of Rs. 49.04 million (31 March 2020 : Rs. 54.06 million ) for doubtful debts. None of those trade debtors past due or impaired have had
their terms renegotiated. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of debtors presented in the financial statements,

The Group evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and operate in largely

independent markets.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitor their risk of shortage of funds using cash flow forecasting models These models consider the maturity of their financial investments,

committed funding and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to provide financial resources to meet its business objectives in a timely, cost effective and reliable manner. A balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility is maintained through the use of bank borrowings. The Group also monitors compliance with its debt covenants. The maturity

profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments is given in the table below:

<lvr 1-5 vrs >5 yrs Total
As at 31 March 2021
Borrowings (including interest accrued) 1,032.15 1,032.15
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) (including interest accrued) - -
Trade payables ' 5,081.81 5,081.81
Derivative liability - - - -
Other financial liability 1,036.83 128.22 34,38 1,199.42
Total 7,150.78 128.22 34.38 7,313.38
As at 31 March 2020
Borrowings (including interest accrued) 1,221.11 33,58 - 1,254.69
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) (including interest accrued) - 640.40 64040
Trade payables 4,965 52 - - 4,965 .52
Other financial liability 410.49 141.93 58.03 610.45
Total 6,597.12 175.51 698.43 7.471.06
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Foreign currency risk

The Group has significant purchases fiom outside India. The Group has tiansactional cumrency exposures arising fiom sales or purchases by an operating it in
currencies other than the unit’s functional currency. Accordingly, the Group’s financial state of affairs can be affected significantly by movements in the US dollar
exchange rates. The Gioup entets into derivative transactions, primarily in the nature of forwaid foreign exchange contracts on import payables. The purpose is to
manage currency risks arising from the Group’s operations

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities denominated in diffeient curtencies aie as follows:

As at 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Financial assets Financial liabilities Financial assets Financial liabilities
INR INR INR INR
Indian Rupees (INR) 4,857.93 3,452.32 6,106.80 4,207.35
United States Dollar (USD) 7,667.95 3,659.51 9,836.44 2,929.36
Chinese Yuan (CNY) - - 13.56 14430
Hong Kong dollar (HKD) 392.18 33.10 108 85 108.32
Other 1,150.38 168.42 15.04 81.74
Total 14,068.45 7,313.38 16,080.69 7,471.07

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency arises in part where a Group holds financial assets and liabilities denominated in a currency different from the functional
currency of that entity with USD being the major non-functional currency of the Group’s main operating subsidiaries. Set out below is the impact of a 10% movement
in the US dollar on profit before tax atising as a 1esult of the revaluation of the Group's foreign currency financial assets and unhedged liabilities :

As at 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Effect of 10% strengthening of INR against following on profit before tax:

USD (460.94) (725.52)
CNY - 13.07
HKD (35.91) (0.05)
Others (98.20) 6.67
Effect of 10% weakening of INR against following on profit before tax:

USD 460.94 725.52
CNY - (13.07)
HKD 3591 0.05
Others a8 20 (6,67}

The Group enters into future contracts to mitigate the risk arising fiom fluctuations in foreign exchauge rates to cover foreign currency payments

The Group has taken future contract of the following amount to hedge against currency risk against movement in INR/US dollar. The contract as on year end are as

follows :
As at 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Aminmnt in INE 600,93 34814
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28 Pos(-employment benefits plan

Gratuity

The Company has unfunded defined benefil gratuily plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gels a gratuily on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for

each completed year of service

The following table summarizes the components of net benefil expense recognized in the slatement of profit and loss for gratuity plan and amounts recognized in the balance sheet in respect of

same.

Statement of profit and loss

Net employee benefit r ized in the empl cost

Current service cost
Interest cost on benefit obligation

Nel benefit expense

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
1152 1049
371 3.86
15.23 14.35

Balance sheet

Benefit asset/liability

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Present value of defined benefit obligation

(66.07)

{56.29)

Net asset/(liability) recognised in balance sheet

{66.07)

(56.29)

Changes in (he present value of (he defined benefi( obligation are as follows:

Opening defined benefit obligation

Current service cosl
Interest cost
Tolal amount recognised in profit & loss

Re-measurement (gains)/losses of defined benefit plan :
- Due to changes in financial assumplions
- Due to experience adjusiment

Total amount 1

gnised in other comprehensive income

Benefits paid
Closing defined benefit obligation
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefits are as below:
Discount rate

Employee tumover*
Salary Escalation Rate

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

56,29 54.45
1152 1049
371 386
1523 1435
L1o 197
0.55 (1.38)
1.65 0.59
(7.10) (13.10)
66.07 56.29

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

5.60%
30.00%
T 0%y

6 00%
30.00%
T 00%

*In (he relail executives category, the employee lumover ratio is above 100% based on which none of such category of employees will remain with the Company for 5 years from the dale of
joining Hence, the average tumover ratio of other calegory of employees has been considered for the calculation of the gratuity liability for {hese category of employees

The eslimates of future salary increases, considered in acluarial valuation, (ake account of inflation, seniority, promofion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the

employment markel

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 5 51 years (31 March 2020: 4 B6 years)

Amounts for the corrent and previous four periods are as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Gratuity

Defined benefit obligation 66 07 5629 5445 103 98 90 02
Experience adiustments on liabilities eain / (loss) (0.55) 138 18 66 443 (4.83)

Sensilivity Analysis:
A quantitalive sensitivity analysis for significant assumplion is as shown below:

Projected benefil obligation on current assumptions

Delta effect of +1 % change in discount rate

Delta effect of -1 % change in discount rate

Delta effect of +1 % change in salary escalation rate

Della effect of -1 % Change in salary escalation rate

Della effect of +10 % change in rate of employee tunover
Delta effect of -10 % change in rate of employee fumover

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

66 07

5629

-165
1.76
189

-181

-116
125
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24 Segment information

“rd AS 168 ustablishes standards for the way the companies report information about operating segments and related disclosures about products
and services, geographic areas, and major customers. The Group’s opciations ::late to sales of mobile handsets through the distributor and refailers
network. The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Group’s performance and allocates resources based on analysis of various
perforirance indicalors pertaining to business as a single scgment. Accordingly, for the purpose of entity wide disclosures, only geographical
information has been presented

Business segment of the Group is primarily sale of mobile handsets

Geographical information on revenues are collated based on individual customers invoiced or in relation to which revenue is otherwise recognized.

Gengraphical information:
Thne following table presents geographical information regarding (he Group’s revenue

As at 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
India 14,826.64 16,346.73
UAE 30,102.13 15,236.64
China - 788.21
Hong Kong 9,512.53 15,007.71
Others 79549 5,312.95
Total 55,236.78 52,692.84

The following tables present geographical information regarding the Group's non current assets as defined in Ind AS 108

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
As at
India 942 52 960 89
Hong Kong 587.25 241.19
Others 0.82 200
Total 1,530.59 1,204,08
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30 Related parties disclosures

In accordance with the tequitements of Ind AS 24 on “ Related party disclosures” the names of related party whose control exist and/or with whom transactions have taken place
during the year and description of the relationship, as identified and certified by the management are as below:

Names of related parties and related party relationship

Country of Nature of Relationship
Sr.No. Related Party lncorpnr)z,\(ion 31 March 2021 31 March 2070
1 MagicTel Solutions Private Limited India (yssoclate (ISSOCILS
2 | Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing Cluster Private Limited (YEMCPL) India JomF e Jom.l !1UC
(Indirect) (Indirect)
Enterprises owned or|Enterprises  owned or
significantly influenced by|significantly influenced by
3 |Am express worldwide Logistics (Parinership Finn) India key management personnelikey nanagement personnel
or their relatives : or their relatives :
Enterprises  owned  or|Enterprises  owned  or
significantly influenced by|significantly influenced by
4 |Ottomate International Private Limited India key management personnellkey management personnel
or their relalives or their relatives
5 |Key Management Personnel : -Provisional
Mr. Hari Om Rai - Chairnnan & Managing director
Mr. Shailendra Nath Rai - Whole time director
Mr. Vishal Sehgal - Non Executive director
Mr. Sunil Bhalla - Non Executive director
Mr. Vinod Rai -Independent director
Mrs. Chitra Gouri Lal - Independent director
Mr. Rahul Kansal - Independent director
Mr.Sunil Raina- President & Bussiness Head (w.e.f 18 May 2021)
Mr. Sanjeev Agarwal Chief Manufacturing Officer (w.e.f 18 May 2021)
Mr. Sourabh Raghuvanshi -Vice President - Sales & Supply Chain (w.e f 18 May 2021)
Mr. Mugdh Rajit - Senior Vice President-Head Marketing, (w.e.f 18 May 2021)
Mr. Vineet Jain — Independent director (from 16 September 2016 to 19 June 2019)
Mr. Rati Ram - Chief Financial Officer (from 1 November 2018 to 1 August 2019)
Mr, Asitava Bose - Chief Financial Officer (with effect from 9 August 2019)
Mr. Bharat Mishra - Company Secretary
Nature of transaction Pl
2020-21 2019-20
A. Transactions during the year
Advances given
Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing Cluster . 0.04
Private Limited (YEMCPL)
B. Amount due to / from related partics
Advance given
Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing Cluster ) 0.04
Private Limited (YEMCPL) y
Other Receivables
Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing Cluster 19.33 19.33
Private Limited (YEMCPL) (Refer Note 6(h)) ’
. Parties in which Key Management Personnel of the
Associate .
: Group are interested
Nature of transaction
2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20
Sale of Services
MagicTel Solutions Private Limited 0.88 5.06 - -
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b) Outstanding Balances with related parties

Nature of transaction

Associate

Parties in which Key Management
Personnel of the Group are interested

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

B. Awount due to/ from related parties
Receivables

MagicTel Solutions Private Limited
Ouomate International Private Limited
Pavables

A Express worldwide Logistics
Advance from Customer

MugieTel Soluions Private Limitid

0.07

¢) Key 2 t personnel comy ion
Remuneration of Key Management
Personnel
Nature of transaction
2020-21 2019-20
Short-term employee benefits 12.26 9.61
Post=emplovment benefits 0.51 1.84

All transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and their
settlement occurs in cash. For the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, the Group has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties.
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31 Commitments and contingencies

(A) Capital and other commitments

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

(a) Estimated amount of contracts to be executed on capital account

[net of capital advances amounting to Nil million (31 March 2020: Nil million) and not provided for] e 10l
(B) Contingent liabilities
31 March 2021 31 Mareh 2020
Bank guarantees 313.94 198.23
Sales tax demands [refer note (a)] (amount paid under protest Rs. 126.44 million (31
March 2020: Rs.86.8C million) 469.83 438.55
783.77 636.78

(a) Sales tax demands

(i) The Hon’ble Supreme Court of India vide its order dated 17 December 2014 in the case of State of Punjab Vs. Nokia India Pvt. Limited, has
held that the mobile charger contained in the mobile phone retail pack is an independent part and shall be separately charged to VAT at rate as
applicable to the chargers. The appellant has already approached the Hon'ble Supreme Court in a review petition challenging the judgement. In
view of this judgement, the VAT Authorities of various states have raised demands along with interest and penalties aggregating to Rs. 126.11
million (31 March 2020: Rs. 102.63 million). The Group has filed appeal against these demands. Amount paid under protest against demands
amounting to Rs. 46.50 million (31 March 2020: Rs. 42.02 million) have been disclosed under balance with statutory/government authorities in
other assets.

Based on the legal assessment, management believes that the possibility of materialising sales tax demands is low. Accordingly, no provision is
made in the financial statements for such demands.

(ii) Sales tax demands received of Rs 35.55 million (31 March 2020 : Rs. 34.31 million) (amount paid under protest of Rs 7.45 million (31 March
2020 : Rs. 7.39 million)) from various sales tax authorities for which the management believes that the possibility of materializing the demand is
reniote.

(iii) Sales tax demands received of Rs 283.70 million (31 March 2020 : Rs. 301.60 million) (amount paid under protest of Rs 70.93 million (31
March 2019 : Rs. 37.39 million) ) classifying mobile phone under residuary entry under schedule- V, whereas as per lawyer's opinion product is
well covered in specific entry 39 under schedule -IV for which management also believes that the possibility of materializing the sales tax demand
is low. Accordingly, no provision is made in the financial statements for such demands.

(iv) Camera Module for mobile phone” is neither similar nor identical With Digital Still image video cameras” as claimed by Group and thus the
items “ Camera Module for Mobile phone is totally different from “ Digital still image video Cameras, hence availed exemption is not eligible to
Group. According to the Group, the Group have rightly claimed exemption from the payment of SWS under SR NO 30 of the notification No
11/2018 CT dated 02.02.2018 which exempts “ Digital Still Image video Cameras falling under the Heading 8525 8020, considering camera
module & digital still image video cameras serving the same purpose which is capturing the image and stored in data bank. Therefore, the Group
have done no mistake by claiming exemption under above said notification. The period in which Group had claimed this exemption is 2nd Feb,
2018 to 31st Jul 2019. Total amount involved is Rs. 23.71 million (31 March 2020 : NIL). Against the order passed by Commissioner, the Group
have filed an appeal before the CESTAT Delhi & deposited Rs. 1.56 million (31 March 2020 : NIL) of above amount for filing the appeal as
prescribed under law. As per the consultant, the Group have a good case to argue and justify the claim.
/0
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(b) Others

(i) M/s Telefonakticbolaget LM Lricsson (‘Lricsson’) filed a suil for infringement of patents against the Group in the month of March 2015, The
said Suit was part ol the serics of suits being filed by Ericsson against many mobile handsct manufacturers in India During 2015 (he Group has
filed a counter civil suil against Teletonaktiebolaget LM Ericsson (‘Ericsson’) before the Fon’ble District Court, Gautam Budh Nagar due to
certain breaches

Subsequent to Group’s institution of the suit in the District Court of Gautam Buddha Nagar, Ericsson has filed a suit for permanent injunction
against the Group before Hon’ble High Court, Delhi, on 23 March 2015 for infringement of Ericsson’s certain patents

Hon’ble District Court, Gautam Budh Nagar has issued notice to Ericsson. Before Ericsson filed its written statement, on application of the
parties, Hon’ble Supreme Court ordered for transfer of the matter to Delhi High Court vide its order dated 31 July 2015 and the same is clubbed
with the pending suit of Ericsson before the Delhi High Court.

Hon’ble High Court, Delhi vide its order dated 22 June 2016 has passed an interim order wherein the Group was injuncted from manufacturing,
importing, selling its devices, subject to the condition of deposit of Rs. 300.00 million with the Registrar General of Delhi High Court. However,
the operation of Interim Order was stayed till the final disposal of the main suit. The Group has complied with the said order and deposited a sum
of Rs. 300.00 million. Presently the aforesaid appeal is pending adjudication before the Delhi High Court and the suit was posted for final
arguments in Februray 2021 which has been adjourned for a future date. Based on legal advise the Group does not expect any financial exposure
upon final settlement and accordingly no provision has been made in the financial statement of the Group.

Apart from above, there is no claim/case being contested with any other standard essential patent providers and the Group is confident that there is
no infringement of patents,

(i) On 01.07.2017, Research and Collaboration Agreement (‘RCA’) was executed between the Group, Mintellectuals LLP and Nokia
Technologies as a confirming party. Under the RCA, the parties were to explore and work towards the possibility of technical and research
collaborations between Mintellectuals/Nokia and the Group.

The Group made payments to Mintellectuals LLP under the RCA, with a view to receive the Research and Collaboration deliverables envisaged
under the Agreement. The Parties also agreed not to challenge/assert any legal rights in relation to Technically Necessary Patents during the term
of this agreement. The payments in question were being made by the Group in lieu of the executory consideration/promise/obligation of
Mintellectuals/Nokia to enable and assist research and collaboration in terms of the RCA.

However, it is a matter of fact that nothing under the RCA was ever delivered by Mintellectuals/Nokia Technologies to the Group. As a result, the
Group declared the RCA as frustrated and repudiated. As a result of the dispute between Mintellectuals and the Group, arbitration proceedings are
going on wherein the Group has denied liability to pay any amount to Mintellectuals and also sought refund of the entire amounts already paid on
the ground that the Agreement stood frustrated/repudiated. Mintellectuals has categorically denied any research and collaboration benefit to the
Group under the RCA and has in fact taken a stand there is no research and collaboration deliverable under the scope of the agreement.

Management has also taken legal opinion from the lawyers and accordingly entire amount paid by Group under this agreement is fully recoverable
on good legal grounds.

(iii) On 29.11.2017, Share Subscription & Shareholder Agreement (‘SSSHA”) was executed between the Company, Sponsors of the Company and
UNIC Memory Technology (HK) Ltd. (‘UNIC’). There were certain disagreements on timing of exit by UNIC, hence the parties were going
through an arbitration procedure.

In relation to such ongoing arbitration, the Company, Sponsors of the Company and UNIC entered into an agreement dated August 7, 2021 and in
this respect, a consent award dated September 9, 2021 was passed by the arbitral tribunal. Also, in relation to the proceedings under section 9 of
the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996, UNIC had filed a withdrawal application in the Delhi High Court and the same has been withdrawn
through an order dated September 16, 2021.
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32 Employee stock option plans:

The plans existing during the year are as follows

Number of pptions approved

15% of Equity Maid up Share capital

Method of settlenent (Cash / Equity)

Casl/Equity

Vesting conditions

The cinployee should be on roll of the Coimpany of its siibsidiary

The details of activity under ESOP Schemes have been summarized below*:

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Number of options Wclghl'fd nvelmge Number of options Welghl?d Average
exercise price exercise price
Outstanding al the beginning of year 20,147 360 10 69 20.147.360| 10 69
Options pranted during the year 28.554,342 6.56 - -
Exercised / Settled during the year . - - 3
(utslanding at the end of the year 48,701,702 827 20,147,360 10.69
Exercisable as s end of the year 20.147.360 10.69] 20,147.360 10.69

The details of the ESOP oulstanding are as follows:*

Options Quistanding as at 31 March 2021 Options Oufstanding ns at 31 Muarch 2020
Range of exercisc No. of shares arising out ~ Weighted Average ~ Weighted Average Exercise | No of shares arising Weighted Average ~ Weighted Average Exercise
of options remaining conltractual price out of oplions remaining contractual price

price per share life life

Rs 1-Rs3.125 20,444,744 476 2501 - - -
Rs. 6250 -Rs 9375 1,639,200 518 7.72 1,639,200 618 1.72
Rs. 9375-Rs 12500 18,508,158 027 1095 18,508,160 208 10.95
Rs 15625 -Rs 18750 8.109.598 4.76 16.81 - - H

*Number of ESOPs and its exercise price has been calculated taking into account the following events happened post 31 March, 2021

a)

b)

Pursuant to the approval of shareholders granted in the extra-ordinary general meeting held on 10 September 2021, the Company undertook a stock split of one existing equity share of Rs 10 each
into two fully paid up equily shares of Rs. 5 each

Pursuant to the approval of shareholders granted in the extra-ordinary general meeting held on 10 Seplember 2021, the Company issued and allotted fully paid-up

“bonus shares” at par in

proportion of one new equily shares of Rs. 5 each for every one existing fully paid up equity share of Rs. 5 each held as on the record date of 08 September 2021

The share based payment expense incurred during the year is shown in the following table:

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Expense arising from equity-settled share-based payment transaclions
(Income) / Expense arising from setilement of options

8554

85.54
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33 Details of ducs to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

34

35

S. No. |Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

1 |The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year 20.37 11.07

2 |The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year Nil Nil
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 along with the amounts of the payment made Nil .

2 to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year : Nil
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid Nil .

4 but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under this Act ' Nil

5 | The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and Nil Nil
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when . .

6 R . Nil Nil
the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise

Pursuant to the requirement of section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereon, the Group is required to spend Rs.11.93 million (31 March 2020: Rs 21 56
million) on corporate social responsibility. During the year the Group has spent Rs. 35.65 million (31 March 2020: Rs. 4.00 million), on various CSR activities for
purpose other than construction or acquisition of any asset

Import of mobile phones only attracts Special Duty of Customs in lieu of Excise (CVD) which is equivalent to excise duty applicable on like goods as if
manufactured or produced in India. Accordingly, mobile phones manufactured in India are subject to excise duty at the rate of 13.5% (including NCCD of 1%) if
Cenvat Credit on inputs and capital goods is availed (rate of duty was 7.21% (including NCCD of 1%) till 28 February 2015) and 2% (including NCCD of 1%) if
such Cenvat Credit on inputs and capital goods is not availed

This has been further clarified by the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India in the similar cases by ruling that the benefit of exemption / concessional rate of excise duty,
which is subject to a condition that no Cenvat credit on inputs or capital goods used in the manufacture of such goods shall be taken, is also available to the
importers of like goods for payment of CVD under Customs,

During the financial years 2014 -2015 and 2015 - 2016, the Group was clearing the imported mobile phones by paying CVD of customs at higher rate of 7.21%
before 1 March 2015 and 13,50% from 1 March 2015 instead of 2% during respective periods. The Group pot re-assessed bills of entries amounting to Rs 638 47
million during the financial year 2017-18 Post clarificalion issued by the Hon’ble Supreme Court in M/s SRF case discussed above, and after re-assessment of bills
of entries, the above said CVD amount became fully recoverable Accordingly, the Group has claimed refund as per the Customs Act 1962

As at 31st March 2021, total amount recoverable amounting to Rs. 391 64 million (31 March 2020: Rs. 73718 million) (including recoverable charges for delayed
payment amounting to Rs, 331.98 million (31 March 2020: Rs. 331,98 million)) was recorded, has been disclosed under “Balance with statutory/government
authorities" based on legal opinion obtained iR
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36 Lnvestments accounted for using the equity method

Set out below are the associates and joint ventures of the group as at 31 March 2021 which, in the opinion of the directors, are material to the group. The entities listed below have
share capital consisting solely of equity shares, which are held directly by the group. The country of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of business, and the
proportion of ownership interest is the same as the proportion of voting rights held

Principal place of Carrying amount

Name of the entity Nature business 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
MagicTel Solutions Private Limited Associate India 13.99 15.71
Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing Cluster Private Limited* Joinl venture India 48.07 48.08
Total 62.06 63.79

"Through the shareholder agreement of Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing Cluster Private Limited, the Group has joint control over the entity, even though it only holds 45.33%,
effectively, of the voting rights.

(i) Commitments and contingent liabilities in respect of associates and joint ventures

The group has no contingent liabilities or capital commitments relating to its interest in MagicTel Solution Private Limited and Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing Cluster Private
Limited as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

The tables below provide summarised financial infonmation for those joint ventures and associates of the group. The infonnation disclosed reflects the amounts presented in the

financial statements of the relevant associates and joint ventures and not the Lava Intemational Limited’s share of those amounts
J

Summarised Balance Shect

Current assels
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-Current liabilities
Net assets

Proportion of Group's ownership
Carrying amount of the Invesiment

Summarised statement of profit and loss

Revenue

Other income

Interest income

Cosl of Sales

Deprecialion and amortisation
Interest expense

Income lax expense/(income)
Employee benefit expense
Other expenses

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Tax adjustment of earlier years
Proportion of Group's ownership
Gair/ (Loss) from profit of associate/ joint venture

MagicTel Selutions Private Limited

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

27.62 26.67
29.71 41.28
1.40 4.63

- 0.47
55.99 62.85
25.00% 25.00%
13.99 15.71

MagicTel Solutions Private Limited

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

557 4198
- 159
2.69 454
2.67) (40.23)
(1.12) (0.84)
(0.03) (0.08)
0.03 :
(9.86) (24.94)
(1.48) (4.20)
(6.86) {22.18)
(6.80) (22.18)
25.00% 25.00%
(1.72) (5.54)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing
Cluster Private Limited

21 March 2021 31 March 2020

0.08 0.22
124.29 124.29
19.40 19.51
104.97 105.00
45.33% 45.33%
48.07 48.08

Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing
Cluster Private Limited

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

= (0.06)
(0.00) (0.00)

- 0.10)
0.01) (0.03)
(0.01) (0.19)
(0.01) (0.19)
4533% 45.33%
0.01) (0.09)
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37 Leases

The Group kas adopted Ind AS 116 using the Modified retrospective method of adoption, with the date of initial application on 1st April
2019. This has resulted in recognizing a right of use assets (an amount cqual to lease ljability, adjusted by the prepaid lease rent) of
Rs.243.15 million as at 1st April 2019. In the statement of profit and loss for the cument period, operating lease expenses has changed
from rent to depreciation cost for the right of use assets and finance cost for interest accrued on lease liability.

Contractual maturities of Ieasc liabilities:-

The details of contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 on an undiscounted basis are as follows:-

Particulars 31 March 2621 31 March 2020

Payable not later than 1 year 23.75 24.11

Payable later than 1 year and not later than S year 128.22 141.93

Later than 5 year 34.38 58.03
186.34 224.07

Lease liability

Iarticulars Office buiiding Factory building Warchouse Building Total
As at 31 March 2019 - - - -
Addition in lease liability 72.45 159.15 11.55 243.15
Interest expense on iease liability 8.08 17.74 1.29 27.11
Payment made during CY 14.62 29.51 2.06 46.19
As at 31 March 2020 6591 147.38 10.78 224.07
Addition in leasc liability - - - -
Deletion in lease liability 6.87 - 7.96 14.83
Interest expense on lease liability 7.35 16.43 1.20 24.98
Payment made during CY 15.39 30.68 1.81 47.89
As at 31 March 2021 51.00 133.14 2.21 186.34
Non Current portion 43.40 117.31 1.89 162.60
Current maturities of lease liability 7.60 15.83 0.32 23.75
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LAVA International Limited
Notes fo consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees Million unless otherwise stated)
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Rescarch and development expenditure:

The Group has duly carried out its research and development activities during the year and the details of related expenditure are given below:

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Amount charged to Statement of Profit and Loss 66.49 84.84
Amount capitalised

- Tangible assets 2.94 4.52

69.43 89.36

Previous year fipures have been reclassed/regrouped, wherever considered necessary to make them comparable with those for the current year

The summary of regrouping related to profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2020 are as follows:

Particulars Notes 31 March 2020 Regrouping 31 March 2020
Regrouped
Income
Finance Income 16 (136.19) 136.19 -
Other income 16 (49.55) (131.64) (181.19)
Other expenses 20 3,876.38 (4.55) 3,871.83

The above regrouping does not have material impact on the financial statements

The Outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic globally and in India is causing significant disturbance and slowdown of economic activity, The
manufacturing activities and the sales and distribution of the products of the Group were disrupted due to lock downs and the general economic
slowdown.

The Group believes the current disruptions in operations are temporary in nature and based on the business outlook and various initiatives announced by
the respective Central and state go /ernments, this may not result in any significant financial impact on the Group. The Management has considered
internal and external sources of information up to the date of approval of these financial statements, in assessing the recoverability of investments and
assets, trade receivables, liquidity, financial position and operations of the Group and based on the management’s assessment, there is no material impact
on the financial results of the Group,

Considering the uncertainties involved in estimating the impact of this pandemic, the future impact of this pandemic may be different from those estimated
as on the date of approval of these financial statements, and this will continue to be monitored in future periods.

During FY 20-21, There are certain suppliers who had supplied to the Group, and they have agreed to take the payments from our certain customers
directly based on the approval of the parties, Accordingly, the trade payables and trade receivables are netted off in these financial statements

(This space has been intentionally left blank)



LAVA International Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
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43 Non Adjusting Events subsequent to 31 March, 2021

a) Pursuant to approval of Board of directors of the Group in the meeting held on 18th May, 2021, the board of directors of the Group accorded the right
issue allotment of 13,50,844 equity shares of Rs. 10 each at the premium of Rs. 523 per shares

b) Pursuant to approval of Board of directors of the Group in the meeting held on 5th June, 2021, the board of directors of the Group, further accorded the
right issue allotment of 562,851 equity shares of Rs. 10 each at the premium of Rs. 523 per shares

c) Pursuant to the approval of shareholders granted in the extra-ordinary general meeting held on 10th September 2021, the Group undertook a stock split
of one existing equity share of Rs. 10 each into two fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 5 each. As a result of the above transaction, the authorised number of
equity shares have been increased to 78,20,00,000 equity shares of the Group having a face value of Rs. 5 each from 39,10,00,000 Equity Shares of the

Group having a face value of Rs. 10 each

d) Pursuant to the approval of shareholders granted in the extra-ordinary general meeting held on 10th September 2021, the Group issued and allotted fully
paid-up “Bonus shares™ at par in proportion of one new equity shares of Rs. 5 each for every one existing fully paid up equity share of Rs. 5 each held as

on the record date of 08th September 2021.
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As per our report of even date as attached

For ASA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 00957 N/N500006

Prateet Mittal
Partner
Membership No. 402631
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N\, » b < Q
\‘*/

Place: Gurugram

Date: 5 /%t (/\ét

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Lava International Limited
CIN - U32201DL2009PLC188920
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Hari @m\Rai
Chariman & Managing Director
DIN-01191443

N2oa 74

Asitava Bose
Chief Financial Officer
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Shailendra Nath Rai
Whole-Time Director
DIN-00908417
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do.
Bharat Mishra
Company Secretary
(Membership No.- ACS-35437)
Place: Noida
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